
 
Page 1 of 71



 
Page 2 of 71



 
Page 3 of 71



AGENDA 

WCCUSD CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

(Bond Measures D, E and R) 

December 12, 2022 at 6 pm 

1400 Marina Way South, Richmond CA 94804 

Hybrid Online and In Person Meeting  

To join by computer, please click the link below to join the webinar 

https://wccusd.zoom.us/j/94978999187?pwd=dGxPVnNZT2RMaThaY
WJYVlkwRnR2QT09  

 

A.  Opening Procedures 
B. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Roll Call 

John Anderson, Sallie DeWitt, Gaia Sonatina, Lorraine Humes, and 
Jason Lindsey  

D. Agenda 

In keeping with CBOC Resolution No. 22-04 all items on the 
agenda are presentations by WCCUSD staff and for other 
information for general .discussion.  No action will be taken by the 
CBOC during this meeting. 

a. Reference CBOC Resolution No. 22-04 (attached) 
 

E. Public Comment for items not on the Agenda 

Items already on the agenda may not be spoken on in this section.  
Speakers wishing to address a specific agenda item they must fill 

 
Page 4 of 71

https://wccusd.zoom.us/j/94978999187?pwd=dGxPVnNZT2RMaThaYWJYVlkwRnR2QT09
https://wccusd.zoom.us/j/94978999187?pwd=dGxPVnNZT2RMaThaYWJYVlkwRnR2QT09


out a Speaker Form with the appropriate agenda item listed.  
Speakers will be allowed three minutes                                                     

 
PRESENTATION                            

 
F. Bond Program Project Status and Financial Reports (Luis 

Freese/Melissa Payne/Ellen Mejia-Hooper) 
 
Presentation on progress of current Bond Projects including 
newsletters and financial reports 
 

a. Facilities Master Plan Project Update Consolidated Budget 
Report  

b. Consolidated Budget Report  
c. Report 13 Bond Program Financial Status  
d. Report 13A Variance Report 
e. Report 2 Bond Program Spending to Date  
f. 20-21 AP check list  
g. Status of applicants for CBOC 
h. Status of WCCUSD Board acceptance of Bond Financial and 

Bond Audit Performance Audits for FY21 
i. Status of WCCUSD Board approval of revised Board Policy 

7214.2 (WCCUSD CBOC)  
j. Joint WCCUSD Board and CBOC meeting 

 
                                DISCUSSION 
 

G. 2021 CBOC Annual Report (Lorraine Humes) 
 
 

 
Page 5 of 71



H. Reference Documents 
a. CBOC Information Request Log December 12, 2022 
b. Revised August 15, 2022 CBOC Meeting Draft Minutes 
c. November 14, 2022 CBOC Draft Meeting Minutes 

 
I. Tentative Calendar CBOC Meetings 2023 (attached) 

 
J. Next Scheduled Meeting  

a. January 9 ,2023  6 pm (May change subject to scheduling of 
Joint meeting with WCCUSD Board) 

 
K. Adjournment   

 
 
 

Disability Information 

Upon written request to the district, disability related modifications or accommodations—including 
auxiliary aids or services—will be provided. Contact the Superintendent’s Office at (510) 231-1101 at 

least 48 hours in advance of the meeting 

 
Page 6 of 71



 
Page 7 of 71



 
Page 8 of 71



 
Page 9 of 71



 
Page 10 of 71



Projects Status Update

Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee  
December 12, 2022

1 
Page 11 of 71



Project StatusUpdate

(DSA) Division of the StateArchitect (RFQ) Request for Qualification
(RFQ/P) Request for Qualifications & Proposal (RFP) Request for Proposal

LEGEND & ACRONYMS

SITE PROJECT TYPE STATUS

PLANNING
Kennedy HS Site Specific Master Plan BOND Architectural RFQ/P

Richmond HS Site Specific Master Plan BOND Architectural RFQ/P

SITE PROJECT TYPE STATUS

DESIGN
Hercules M/HS Critical Needs: Science Building BOND

Submitted responses to DSA 
comments on Dec 14th 

Shannon ES Critical Needs: MPR BOND
Comments back from DSA 
expected late December 

SITE PROJECT TYPE STATUS

PROCUREMENT

Riverside ES Playground Improvements BOND Bid Spring of 2023

Collins ES Critical Needs: HVAC Addition BOND Project Kick Off

Cameron School Critical Needs: HVAC Addition BOND Project Kick Off

SITE PROJECT TYPE STATUS

DESIGN-BUILD Lake Campus Replacement BOND Increment 1 - Construction 
Increment 2 – Project Kick Off

SITE PROJECT TYPE STATUS

CONSTRUCTION
E-Rate Year 24

Indoor/Outdoor Wireless
Upgrades at Various Sites

E-RATE &
BOND Construction

Kennedy Fields Field and Bleachers Replacement BOND Construction

Pinole Valley HS Fields Restoration & Bleachers BOND Closeout

2 
Page 12 of 71



Kennedy High School Field, Bleacher & Press Box

This project refurbishes the stadium on the Kennedy campus.  Major elements 
include the replacement of the existing bleachers with new visitor and home 
bleachers, resurfacing the field turf and track, and relocating the tack field 
events. 

3 
Page 13 of 71



Kennedy High School Field, Bleacher & Press Box

4
New Fence Post and Forming for New Curb and Ramp

 
Page 14 of 71



Kennedy HS Bleachers and Press Box Replacement

5

Turf Removal
 

Page 15 of 71



Kennedy HS Bleachers and Press Box Replacement

6

New goal posts, fine grading of the turf field baserock, concrete base for the new 
discus throwing circle, newly leveled AC base for the track surface

 
Page 16 of 71



Kennedy HS Bleachers and Press Box Replacement

7

New long jump runways and pits – prepped for AC paving and track surfacing
 

Page 17 of 71



Cameron and Collins Critical Needs Project

The Cameron School and Collins Elementary School Critical Needs Projects 
have similar HVAC and electrical scope. The scope of work includes the 
removal of existing boilers and the installation of new heating and cooling 
system. The project also includes electrical service replacement and path of 
travel and accessibility improvements.

8 
Page 18 of 71



Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement

This two-phase project is the replacement of the Lake ES campus.  The first 
phase includes new classrooms, library, and admin buildings and site work on 
the East half of the campus. The second phase will include new kindergarten 
and cafeteria buildings and remaining site work on the West half of the 
campus. 

9 
Page 19 of 71



Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement

10

Fire Water Line
 

Page 20 of 71



Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement

11

Trenching for the storm water connection to the detention basin (Veterans Day)
 

Page 21 of 71



Lake Elementary School Campus 
Replacement 
Design Build Contract Amendment

CBOC December 12, 2022 

12

 
Page 22 of 71



13

Lake ES Campus Replacement
Scope: 

● Rebuild the existing Lake 
Elementary School

Budget: 

● 65.6 Million

Schedule:

● Started Construction in 
June 2022

● Phase 1 - Estimated 
Completion Winter of 
2024

● Phase 2 - Winter of 2024 -
Summer of 2025

Project Website: https://www.wccusd.net/Page/15892

 
Page 23 of 71



ENGINEERING NEWS RECORD                             
Historical Cost Index for San Francisco

Average Building Cost Index Percentage Change 
Between 2000 and 2020 Was 3.6% Per Year

Building Cost Index Percentage Change for 2021 
and 2022 was 26.22%. Average of 13.11% Per Year

 
Page 24 of 71



Material   
Escalation 

36% Increase 

Between select materials 
included in the contract 
cost proposal in 2021 and 
the increment 2 bid 
results received in 
October 2022.

2022 Increment 2 
Total Material 
Costs Evaluated

$10,545,320

2021 Proposal 
Total Material 
Costs Evaluated

$7,766,163

Difference in    
Total Material 
Costs Evaluated

$2,779,157

 
Page 25 of 71



Cost Mitigation  - $3,559,244

Value Engineer Materials 
and Systems - Same 
Warranty and Performance

● Revise Countertop Material
● Revise Roof Coating
● Revise Window surrounds
● Revise Tile Manufacturer
● Revise Wood Ceiling Material/Profile
● Revise Acoustical Ceiling Material
● Revise Flooring 

Material/Manufacturer
● Revise Operable Door Manufacturer
● Revise HVAC Control Manufacturer
● Revise Heat Pump Manufacturer from 

Carrier to Trane
● Revise Material and Profile of 

Ornamental Fencing
● Revise landscape Sod Material

($2,523,251)

● Substitute a Drainable Water 
Resistant Barrier for an Air Barrier and 
Water Resistant Barrier

● Revise Fence Footing Requirements

Value Engineer Materials and 
Systems - Same Warranty 

($638,616)

Scope Reduction - Minimal 
to No Impact to Program

● Omit Cord Reels in Classrooms
● Reduce  Exterior Speakers and WAPS
● Omit Hardware Attic Stock
● Reduce and Revise Planting in open 

play areas
● Omit independent covered walkways 

connecting buildings

($397,377)

 
Page 26 of 71



On December 7th the Board Approved the 
following:

Amendment to the Design-Build contract to:

❏ Incorporate the DSA approved documents 

❏ Incorporate the value engineering scope modifications to create savings of $3.5 million

❏ Add the teaching walls with marker board and Merv 14 filters for $503K

❏ Extend the Project Completion date by 140 calendar days

❏ Reduce and reallocate the contingencies by $2.2 million

❏ Increase the contract amount by $2.5 million 

 
Page 27 of 71



www.wccusd.net/Page/6945 @WCCUSDfacilities

Construction News

Contact Information
Contractor: 
BHM Construction, Inc.

Construction Manager: 
Swinerton – Vincent Som
vincent.som@wccusd.net

Construction News

December 2022Kennedy HS Bleacher Replacement Project

Project Facts

• Project Scope: Installation of new field 
and track surfaces, new home and away 
bleachers, new press box and 
scoreboard at KHS Stadium. 

• Architect: HMC Architects
• Anticipated Completion: Winter 2022

To subscribe to this 
monthly newsletter or 
ask a project questions, 
please email: 

askfacilities
@wccusd.net

Work Completed Last Month

• Concrete forms and rebar for home and visitor and 
home bleacher pads

• Placement of new concrete electrical pad
• Replacement of drain rock on the edge of the turf field
• Removal of existing field surface 
• Concrete at new shotput, long jump, and triple jump
• Reprofiled track subsurface
• Installation of new goal post

Upcoming Work This Month

www.wccusd.net/Domain/40www.wccusd.net/kennedy

Project Website:
https://www.wccusd.net/Page/16136

• Grading of new field surface
• Installation of new track surface
• Install new electrical and low voltage conduit and 

cabling
• Install new pedestrian site lighting and fencing
• Restore asphalt around the stadium

Accessibility improvements in the student parking lot

Removal of Existing Field Surface

 
Page 28 of 71



www.wccusd.net/Page/6945 @WCCUSDfacilities

Construction News

Project Team:
Design Build Contractor: 
Alten Construction

Construction Manager:
RGM Kramer Inc.
Matthew Medeiros
Matthew.Medeiros@wccusd.net

December 2022Lake Elementary School Replacement Project

Project Facts
Project Scope: The construction of the Lake Elementary 
School Campus began in June. Construction is separated 
into two phases. The first phase will include new office, 
library, and classrooms on the east side of the campus. The 
second phase will include new cafeteria, Kinder/TK complex, 
and playfields. Construction is estimated thru Fall 2025. The 
campus will be occupied, and community pedestrian access 
will be limited during construction. 

La construcción del campus de la escuela primaria Lake 
comenzo en Junio. La construcción se divide en dos fases. 
La primera fase incluirá una nueva oficina, biblioteca y 
salones de clases en el lado este del campus. La segunda
fase incluirá una nueva cafetería, un complejo de Kinder/TK 
y campos de juego. La construcción se estima hasta el otoño
de 2025. El campus estará ocupado y el acceso peatonal de 
la comunidad estará limitado durante la construcción. 

Anticipated Completion: Summer/Fall 2025

To subscribe to this 
monthly newsletter or 
ask a project questions, 
please email:   

askfacilities
@wccusd.netProject Website:

https://www.wccusd.net/Page/15892

Work Completed Last Month

• Complete installation of the new sewer 
and fire water lines

• Pour foundations for Buildings A & B

Work to be Completed This Month

• Completed installation of the new storm 
drain system

• Site grading and preparing the site for 
winter

• Continued installation of new sewer and 
fire water lines

 
Page 29 of 71



Original Contract Amount

BOE Executed COs $0.00 0.00%

Unforeseen Conditions $0.00 0.00%

Owner Requested $0.00 0.00%

Design Changes $0.00 0.00%

Outside Agency/Other $0 0.00%

Project No: 1000003935R DSA No: 01-119821 Revised Contract Amount 
(Contract + $ Executed CO)

Total PCOs $337,784.52 6.70%

Pending PCOs $337,784.52 6.70%

Rejected/Voided PCOs $0.00 0.00%

Completed & Stored $ Billed to Date $1,500,017.38 29.75%

Stop Notices $0

83 58%

Original Project Duration

Revised Project Duration Project Issues:

Construction Manager

Contractor

Inspector

Approved Time Extensions

144

8/9/2022

144

12/30/2022

$5,042,000

Field House Improvements
Track & Field surface replacement
Construction of  bleachers & press box

Milestone I: Site Demolition
Milestone II: Earthwork and Paving
Milestone III: Track and Field Surface
Milestone IIII: Bleachers and Press Box
Milestone V: Scoreboard

NTP

Co
nt

ra
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ta

tu
s

Final Completion

Calendar Days Lapsed

Revised Completion Date

HMC Architects

Swinerton

BHM Construction, Inc

WCCUSD

Architect

$5,042,000

- Home/Visitor Bleacher Concrete Pads
- Pole Vault/Long+Triple Jump/Shotput Concrete
- Electrical Concrete Pad
- Track surface reprofiling
- Field Surface removal

- Field Surface grading
- Install track surface
- Route electrical and low voltage cabling
- Asphalt restoration

12/1/2022Project Status Report:

Pr
oj

ec
t S

co
pe

Pr
oj

ec
t T

ea
m

Sc
he

du
le

DSA School Inspectors

Completed Work:

Upcoming Work: 

Owner

- Installation of ADA compliant drinking fountain at the field house
- Pathways for the low voltage system

Kennedy High School

Field, Press Box, & Bleachers

4300 Cutting Blvd.
Richmond CA, 94804

Project Status Report - KHS Fields_Dec 2022  
Page 30 of 71



Base Contract Amount

Project Contingency

District Contingency

Original Contract Amount

Project Contingency $1,694,982

Executed CO $0 0%

Remaining Contingency $1,694,982 100%

Open PCOs $0 0%

Rejected PCOs $0 0%

District Contingency $4,609,055

Executed CO $172,422 4%

Remaining Contingency $4,436,633 96%

Open PCOs $14,451 0%

Rejected PCOs $0 0%

Stop Notices $0

Activities Last Month:

35%

Upcoming Work

Co
nt

ra
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y

Completed & Stored $ Billed to Date $5,041,637 9%

$54,654,282

Pr
oj

ec
t U

pd
at

es

Phase 1A Increment 1 UG Storm Sewer, Winterize Site                                                                                                                                                            
Increment 2 VE and the scope to budget process was completed

Phase 1A Increment 1 UG Fire Water                   
Increment 2 NTP is anticipated to be provided in the first half of December. 
Building Foundations at Building A and Building B.                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Project Status Report:
Pr

oj
ec

t S
co

pe

Replacement of existing campus with construction of six new 
buildings. The first phase includes demolition of existing 
Kindergarten Building and construction of three of the new 
buildings and site work on the East half of the campus. The second 
phase will include the other three new buildings and remaining site 
work on the West half of the campus. 

$1,694,982

$4,609,055

$48,350,245

12/1/2022

Project No: 1000003734 DSA No: 01-119938

Sc
he

du
le

Calendar Days Elapsed

Pr
oj

ec
t T

ea
m

Inspector

492

Revised Project Duration

Revised Completion Date

8/5/2021

1258

1/24/2025

140

1398

6/13/2025

Notice to Proceed

Original Project Duration

Construction Manager RGM Kramer

DSA School Inspectors, Inc.

Final Completion

Approved Time Extensions

Owner WCCUSD

Design Build Entity Alten Construction & Co.

Lake Elementary School
Replacement Project

2700 11th St. 
San Pablo, CA, 94806

 
Page 31 of 71



West Contra Costa Unified School District Data Date: 2022-11-30

Consolidated Budget Status Report
Budgets versus Commitments and Expenditures for multiple Projects

Budget vs. Commitments and Expenditures
Fund 21 and Fund 35

School/Project Name  Total Budget  Total Commitments 
 % Budget 
Commited 

 Remaining Against 
Budget 

 Total Expenditures 
 % Budget 

Spent 

1 Bayview Elementary School
Legacy Project 19,850,802                 19,850,802                 100.0% -                                 19,850,802                 100.0%

 19,850,802                19,850,802                100.0% -                                19,850,802                100.0%
1 Cameron

* Critical Needs 1,300,000                   121,217                      9.3% 1,178,784                   80,042                        6.2%
Legacy Project 122,195                      122,195                      100.0% -                                 122,195                      100.0%

 1,422,195                  243,411                     17.1% 1,178,784                  202,237                     14.2%
1 Castro Elementary School

Legacy Project 620,944                      620,944                      100.0% -                                 620,944                      100.0%
 620,944                     620,944                     100.0% -                                620,944                     100.0%
1 Chavez Elementary School

Critical Needs 72,847                        72,847                        100.0% -                                 72,847                        100.0%
Legacy Project 985,387                      985,387                      100.0% -                                 985,387                      100.0%

 1,058,234                  1,058,234                  100.0% -                                1,058,234                  100.0%
1 Collins Elementary School

* Critical Needs 3,500,000                   283,702                      8.1% 3,216,298                   175,827                      5.0%
Legacy Project 1,638,871                   1,638,871                   100.0% -                                 1,638,871                   100.0%

 5,138,871                  1,922,573                  37.4% 3,216,298                  1,814,698                  35.3%
1 Coronado Elementary School

Legacy Project 43,022,627                 43,022,627                 100.0% -                                 43,022,627                 100.0%
 43,022,627                43,022,627                100.0% -                                43,022,627                100.0%
1 Dover Elementary School

Legacy Project 35,095,267                 35,095,267                 100.0% -                                 35,095,267                 100.0%
 35,095,267                35,095,267                100.0% -                                35,095,267                100.0%
1 Downer Elementary School

Legacy Project 33,415,902                 33,415,902                 100.0% -                                 33,415,902                 100.0%
 33,415,902                33,415,902                100.0% -                                33,415,902                100.0%
1 El Sobrante Elementary School

Legacy Project 536,231                      536,231                      100.0% -                                 536,231                      100.0%
 536,231                     536,231                     100.0% -                                536,231                     100.0%
1 Ellerhorst Elementary School

Legacy Project 13,931,806                 13,931,806                 100.0% -                                 13,931,806                 100.0%
 13,931,806                13,931,806                100.0% -                                13,931,806                100.0%
1 Fairmont Elementary School

* Critical Needs 3,000,000                   2,738,183                   91.3% 261,817                      2,738,183                   91.3%
Legacy Project 3,864,259                   3,864,259                   100.0% -                                 3,864,259                   100.0%

 6,864,259                  6,602,441                  96.2% 261,817                     6,602,441                  96.2%
1 Ford Elementary School

Legacy Project 30,817,526                 30,817,526                 100.0% -                                 30,817,526                 100.0%
 30,817,526                30,817,526                100.0% -                                30,817,526                100.0%
1 Grant Elementary School

Critical Needs 211,467                      211,467                      100.0% -                                 211,467                      100.0%
Legacy Project 1,944,098                   1,944,098                   100.0% -                                 1,944,098                   100.0%

 2,155,565                  2,155,565                  100.0% -                                2,155,565                  100.0%
1 Hanna Ranch Elementary School

Legacy Project 783,349                      783,349                      100.0% -                                 783,349                      100.0%
 783,349                     783,349                     100.0% -                                783,349                     100.0%
1 Harbour Way

Legacy Project 121,944                      121,944                      100.0% -                                 121,944                      100.0%
 121,944                     121,944                     100.0% -                                121,944                     100.0%
1 Harding Elementary School

Legacy Project 22,632,446                 22,632,446                 100.0% -                                 22,632,446                 100.0%
 22,632,446                22,632,446                100.0% -                                22,632,446                100.0%
1 Harmon Knolls

Critical Needs 406,946                      406,946                      100.0% -                                 406,946                      100.0%
Soil Testing 41,489                        41,489                        100.0% -                                 41,489                        100.0%

 448,435                     448,435                     100.0% -                                448,435                     100.0%
1 Highland Elementary School

* Water & Power Upgrade 747,125                      -                                 0.0% 747,125                      -                                 0.0%
Critical Needs 52,875                        52,875                        100.0% -                                 52,875                        100.0%
Legacy Project 1,879,839                   1,879,839                   100.0% -                                 1,879,839                   100.0%

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 

Data as of 10/31/2022

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 1 of 5

 
Page 32 of 71



West Contra Costa Unified School District Data Date: 2022-11-30

Consolidated Budget Status Report
Budgets versus Commitments and Expenditures for multiple Projects

Budget vs. Commitments and Expenditures
Fund 21 and Fund 35

School/Project Name  Total Budget  Total Commitments 
 % Budget 
Commited 

 Remaining Against 
Budget 

 Total Expenditures 
 % Budget 

Spent 

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 

Data as of 10/31/2022

 2,679,839                  1,932,714                  72.1% 747,125                     1,932,714                  72.1%
1 Kensington Elementary School

Legacy Project 19,343,892                 19,343,892                 100.0% -                                 19,343,892                 100.0%
 19,343,892                19,343,892                100.0% -                                19,343,892                100.0%
1 King Elementary School

Legacy Project 25,342,166                 25,342,166                 100.0% -                                 25,342,166                 100.0%
 25,342,166                25,342,166                100.0% -                                25,342,166                100.0%
1 Lake Elementary School

* Campus Replacement 65,600,000                 55,340,704                 84.4% 10,259,296                 5,084,429                   7.8%
Legacy Project 1,500,322                   1,500,322                   100.0% -                                 1,500,322                   100.0%
Portable Demolition 147,501                      147,501                      100.0% -                                 147,501                      100.0%

 67,247,823                56,988,526                84.7% 10,259,296                6,732,252                  10.0%
1 Lincoln Elementary School

Legacy Project 17,676,561                 17,676,561                 100.0% -                                 17,676,561                 100.0%
 17,676,561                17,676,561                100.0% -                                17,676,561                100.0%
1 Lupine Hills Elementary School

Legacy Project 15,395,678                 15,395,678                 100.0% -                                 15,395,678                 100.0%
 15,395,678                15,395,678                100.0% -                                15,395,678                100.0%
1 Madera Elementary School

Legacy Project 12,233,801                 12,233,801                 100.0% -                                 12,233,801                 100.0%
 12,233,801                12,233,801                100.0% -                                12,233,801                100.0%
1 Michelle Obama School

* Campus Replacement 40,300,000                 39,344,053                 97.6% 955,947                      39,344,053                 97.6%
Legacy Project 3,829,324                   3,829,324                   100.0% -                                 3,829,324                   100.0%

 44,129,324                43,173,377                97.8% 955,947                     43,173,377                97.8%
1 Mira Vista K-8

Legacy Project 16,651,130                 16,651,130                 100.0% -                                 16,651,130                 100.0%
 16,651,130                16,651,130                100.0% -                                16,651,130                100.0%
1 Montalvin K-8

Additional New Classrooms 4,028,011                   4,028,011                   100.0% -                                 4,028,011                   100.0%
Legacy Project 12,763,017                 12,763,017                 100.0% -                                 12,763,017                 100.0%

 16,791,028                16,791,028                100.0% -                                16,791,028                100.0%
1 Murphy Elementary School

Legacy Project 15,619,655                 15,619,655                 100.0% -                                 15,619,655                 100.0%
 15,619,655                15,619,655                100.0% -                                15,619,655                100.0%
1 Nystrom Elementary School

Classroom Renovation 30,233,455                 30,233,455                 100.0% -                                 30,233,455                 100.0%
Demo Portable and Sitework 518,285                      518,285                      100.0% -                                 518,285                      100.0%
Legacy Project 5,442,234                   5,442,234                   100.0% -                                 5,442,234                   100.0%
Multi-purpose Room 11,606,839                 11,606,839                 100.0% -                                 11,606,839                 100.0%

 47,800,813                47,800,813                100.0% -                                47,800,813                100.0%
1 Ohlone Elementary School

Classroom and Admin Building 24,508,510                 24,508,510                 100.0% -                                 24,508,510                 100.0%
Critical Needs 623,885                      623,885                      100.0% -                                 623,885                      100.0%
Legacy Project 3,962,598                   3,962,598                   100.0% -                                 3,962,598                   100.0%
Portable Removal and Playground 5,397,758                   5,397,758                   100.0% -                                 5,397,758                   100.0%

 34,492,752                34,492,752                100.0% -                                34,492,752                100.0%
1 Olinda Elementary School

Critical Needs 793,247                      793,247                      100.0% -                                 793,247                      100.0%
Legacy Project 1,286,942                   1,286,942                   100.0% -                                 1,286,942                   100.0%

 2,080,188                  2,080,188                  100.0% -                                2,080,188                  100.0%
1 Peres K-8

Legacy Project 21,424,293                 21,424,293                 100.0% -                                 21,424,293                 100.0%
 21,424,293                21,424,293                100.0% -                                21,424,293                100.0%
1 RCP Charter School

Legacy Project 4,415,204                   4,415,204                   100.0% -                                 4,415,204                   100.0%
 4,415,204                  4,415,204                  100.0% -                                4,415,204                  100.0%
1 Riverside Elementary School

* Critical Needs 6,900,000                   3,012,800                   43.7% 3,887,200                   2,921,783                   42.3%
Legacy Project 14,611,005                 14,611,005                 100.0% -                                 14,611,005                 100.0%

 21,511,005                17,623,805                81.9% 3,887,200                  17,532,789                81.5%

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 2 of 5

 
Page 33 of 71



West Contra Costa Unified School District Data Date: 2022-11-30

Consolidated Budget Status Report
Budgets versus Commitments and Expenditures for multiple Projects

Budget vs. Commitments and Expenditures
Fund 21 and Fund 35

School/Project Name  Total Budget  Total Commitments 
 % Budget 
Commited 

 Remaining Against 
Budget 

 Total Expenditures 
 % Budget 

Spent 

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 

Data as of 10/31/2022

1 Seaview Elementary School
Legacy Project 499,116                      499,116                      100.0% -                                 499,116                      100.0%

 499,116                     499,116                     100.0% -                                499,116                     100.0%
1 Shannon Elementary School

* Critical Needs 9,300,000                   523,436                      5.6% 8,776,564                   200,119                      2.2%
Legacy Project 1,555,163                   1,555,163                   100.0% -                                 1,555,163                   100.0%

 10,855,163                2,078,599                  19.1% 8,776,564                  1,755,282                  16.2%
1 Sheldon Elementary School

Legacy Project 15,102,837                 15,102,837                 100.0% -                                 15,102,837                 100.0%
 15,102,837                15,102,837                100.0% -                                15,102,837                100.0%
1 Stege Elementary School

* Critical Needs 2,900,000                   35,900                        1.2% 2,864,100                   35,900                        1.2%
Legacy Project 3,445,886                   3,445,886                   100.0% -                                 3,445,886                   100.0%

 6,345,886                  3,481,786                  54.9% 2,864,100                  3,481,786                  54.9%
1 Stewart K-8

Legacy Project 16,737,037                 16,737,037                 100.0% -                                 16,737,037                 100.0%
 16,737,037                16,737,037                100.0% -                                16,737,037                100.0%
1 Tara Hills Elementary School

Legacy Project 14,975,067                 14,975,067                 100.0% -                                 14,975,067                 100.0%
 14,975,067                14,975,067                100.0% -                                14,975,067                100.0%
1 TLC Elementary School

Legacy Project 116,673                      116,673                      100.0% -                                 116,673                      100.0%
 116,673                     116,673                     100.0% -                                116,673                     100.0%
1 Valley View Elementary School

Critical Needs 1,091,447                   1,091,447                   100.0% -                                 1,091,447                   100.0%
Existing Campus Demo 33,096                        33,096                        100.0% -                                 33,096                        100.0%
Legacy Project 3,908,093                   3,908,093                   100.0% -                                 3,908,093                   100.0%
Portables 5,189,726                   5,189,726                   100.0% -                                 5,189,726                   100.0%

 10,222,362                10,222,362                100.0% -                                10,222,362                100.0%
1 Verde K-8

Legacy Project 16,065,870                 16,065,870                 100.0% -                                 16,065,870                 100.0%
 16,065,870                16,065,870                100.0% -                                16,065,870                100.0%
1 Washington Elementary School

Legacy Project 15,322,847                 15,322,847                 100.0% -                                 15,322,847                 100.0%
 15,322,847                15,322,847                100.0% -                                15,322,847                100.0%
1 West Hercules

Legacy Project 56,847                        56,847                        100.0% -                                 56,847                        100.0%
 56,847                       56,847                       100.0% -                                56,847                       100.0%
2 Adams Middle School

Legacy Project 691,211                      691,211                      100.0% -                                 691,211                      100.0%
 691,211                     691,211                     100.0% -                                691,211                     100.0%
2 Betty Reid Soskin Middle School

Critical Needs 5,169,597                   5,169,597                   100.0% -                                 5,169,597                   100.0%
Legacy Project 1,245,896                   1,245,896                   100.0% -                                 1,245,896                   100.0%

 6,415,493                  6,415,493                  100.0% -                                6,415,493                  100.0%
2 DeJean Middle School

Legacy Project 381,209                      381,209                      100.0% -                                 381,209                      100.0%
 381,209                     381,209                     100.0% -                                381,209                     100.0%
2 Helms Middle School

Legacy Project 83,432,888                 83,432,888                 100.0% -                                 83,432,888                 100.0%
 83,432,888                83,432,888                100.0% -                                83,432,888                100.0%
2 Hercules Middle School

Legacy Project 699,000                      699,000                      100.0% -                                 699,000                      100.0%
 699,000                     699,000                     100.0% -                                699,000                     100.0%
2 Korematsu Middle School

* New Buildings 53,439,076                 53,056,037                 99.3% 383,040                      52,790,907                 98.8%
Legacy Project 19,943,103                 19,943,103                 100.0% -                                 19,943,103                 100.0%

 73,382,179                72,999,139                99.5% 383,040                     72,734,009                99.1%
2 Pinole Middle School

Legacy Project 56,689,430                 56,689,430                 100.0% -                                 56,689,430                 100.0%
 56,689,430                56,689,430                100.0% -                                56,689,430                100.0%

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 3 of 5

 
Page 34 of 71



West Contra Costa Unified School District Data Date: 2022-11-30

Consolidated Budget Status Report
Budgets versus Commitments and Expenditures for multiple Projects

Budget vs. Commitments and Expenditures
Fund 21 and Fund 35

School/Project Name  Total Budget  Total Commitments 
 % Budget 
Commited 

 Remaining Against 
Budget 

 Total Expenditures 
 % Budget 

Spent 

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 

Data as of 10/31/2022

3 De Anza High School
Legacy Project 132,236,248               132,236,248               100.0% -                                 132,236,248               100.0%

 132,236,248              132,236,248              100.0% -                                132,236,248              100.0%
3 DELTA NSS

Legacy Project 152,226                      152,226                      100.0% -                                 152,226                      100.0%
 152,226                     152,226                     100.0% -                                152,226                     100.0%
3 El Cerrito High School

Legacy Project 128,477,500               128,477,500               100.0% -                                 128,477,500               100.0%
Stadium 18,372,605                 18,372,605                 100.0% -                                 18,372,605                 100.0%

 146,850,105              146,850,105              100.0% -                                146,850,105              100.0%
3 Greenwood High School

Legacy Project 79,583,607                 79,583,607                 100.0% -                                 79,583,607                 100.0%
 79,583,607                79,583,607                100.0% -                                79,583,607                100.0%
3 Hercules High School

* Critical Needs 19,700,000                 1,010,140                   5.1% 18,689,860                 542,977                      2.8%
Legacy Project 3,295,019                   3,295,019                   100.0% -                                 3,295,019                   100.0%

 22,995,019                4,305,160                  18.7% 18,689,860                3,837,996                  16.7%
3 KAPPA NSS

Legacy Project 109,831                      109,831                      100.0% -                                 109,831                      100.0%
 109,831                     109,831                     100.0% -                                109,831                     100.0%
3 Kennedy High School

* Critical Needs 12,200,000                 337,840                      2.8% 11,862,160                 289,751                      2.4%
* Fields, Bleachers, Press Box 6,600,000                   5,556,753                   84.2% 1,043,247                   972,757                      14.7%
Legacy Project 33,854,981                 33,854,981                 100.0% -                                 33,854,981                 100.0%

 52,654,981                39,749,574                75.5% 12,905,407                35,117,490                66.7%
3 North Campus High School

Legacy Project 205,450                      205,450                      100.0% -                                 205,450                      100.0%
 205,450                     205,450                     100.0% -                                205,450                     100.0%
3 OMEGA NSS

Legacy Project 118,313                      118,313                      100.0% -                                 118,313                      100.0%
 118,313                     118,313                     100.0% -                                118,313                     100.0%
3 Pinole Valley High School

* Campus Replacement 154,548,190               154,109,282               99.7% 438,908                      154,109,282               99.7%
* Fields/Sitework 19,184,130                 17,161,439                 89.5% 2,022,691                   14,395,139                 75.0%
* Interim Campus Demo 3,628,013                   3,625,096                   99.9% 2,917                         3,625,096                   99.9%
* Site Design 17,951,414                 17,951,414                 100.0% -                                 17,800,248                 99.2%
Detention Basin and Paving 3,517,521                   3,517,521                   100.0% -                                 3,517,521                   100.0%
Existing Building Demolition 2,511,397                   2,511,397                   100.0% -                                 2,511,397                   100.0%
Hillside Stabilization 2,199,821                   2,199,821                   100.0% -                                 2,199,821                   100.0%
Interim Campus 8,796,248                   8,796,248                   100.0% -                                 8,796,248                   100.0%
Legacy Furniture & Equipment 36,520                        36,520                        100.0% -                                 36,520                        100.0%
Legacy Program Cost 696,938                      696,938                      100.0% -                                 696,938                      100.0%
Legacy Restroom Renovation 167,601                      167,601                      100.0% -                                 167,601                      100.0%
Legacy Technology 37,165                        37,165                        100.0% -                                 37,165                        100.0%
Legacy Track 1,676,771                   1,676,771                   100.0% -                                 1,676,771                   100.0%
Off Site Parking and Traffic 1,240,584                   1,240,584                   100.0% -                                 1,240,584                   100.0%
Video Surveillance System 357,268                      357,268                      100.0% -                                 357,268                      100.0%

 216,549,580              214,085,064              98.9% 2,464,516                  211,167,597              97.5%
3 Richmond High School

* Gym and Seismic Classroom 21,000,000                 20,251,050                 96.4% 748,950                      20,245,988                 96.4%
Legacy Project 21,622,087                 21,622,087                 100.0% -                                 21,622,087                 100.0%

 42,622,087                41,873,137                98.2% 748,950                     41,868,076                98.2%
3 SIGMA NSS

Legacy Project 110,949                      110,949                      100.0% -                                 110,949                      100.0%
 110,949                     110,949                     100.0% -                                110,949                     100.0%
3 Vista High School

Legacy Project 7,236,543                   7,236,543                   100.0% -                                 7,236,543                   100.0%
 7,236,543                  7,236,543                  100.0% -                                7,236,543                  100.0%
4  Technology

* Infrastructure 15,366,976                 15,257,574                 99.3% 109,402                      14,869,471                 96.8%
Computer Common Core 3,903,858                   3,903,858                   100.0% -                                 3,903,858                   100.0%

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 4 of 5

 
Page 35 of 71



West Contra Costa Unified School District Data Date: 2022-11-30

Consolidated Budget Status Report
Budgets versus Commitments and Expenditures for multiple Projects

Budget vs. Commitments and Expenditures
Fund 21 and Fund 35

School/Project Name  Total Budget  Total Commitments 
 % Budget 
Commited 

 Remaining Against 
Budget 

 Total Expenditures 
 % Budget 

Spent 

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 

Data as of 10/31/2022

District Network Backbone 568,416                      568,416                      100.0% -                                 568,416                      100.0%
IT Data Center 1,400,746                   1,400,746                   100.0% -                                 1,400,746                   100.0%
Teacher Equipment 112,360                      112,360                      100.0% -                                 112,360                      100.0%
Tech Communication 1,130,966                   1,130,966                   100.0% -                                 1,130,966                   100.0%
Technology Equipment 1,885,661                   1,885,661                   100.0% -                                 1,885,661                   100.0%
Technology Wireless 10,993,016                 10,993,016                 100.0% -                                 10,993,016                 100.0%

 35,362,000                35,252,598                99.7% 109,402                     34,864,495                98.6%
4 Central

* District Support 57,308,712                 56,320,982                 98.3% 987,730                      55,212,395                 96.3%
* Program Coordination 54,022,923                 50,712,089                 93.9% 3,310,834                   49,717,810                 92.0%

 111,331,634              107,033,070              96.1% 4,298,564                  104,930,205              94.3%
Totals 1,778,861,243            1,707,114,373            96.0% 71,746,870                1,645,516,841            92.5%

Note 1: * Site Projects are under planning, construction or in closeout.
Note 2: 1 School Name - Elementary school site name
Note 3: 2 School Name - Middle school site name
Note 4: 3 School Name - High school site name
Note 5: 4 Central/Program Name
Note 6: BOE approved supplemental fund for Michelle Obama school: Fund 25 of $1.75M and Fund 01 MRAD of $0.85M on 6/26/19
Note 7: BOE approved supplemental fund for Richmond HS: Fund 40 of $1M on 11/06/19
Note 8: BOE approved supplemental fund for Michelle Obama school: Fund 25 of $2M on 06/24/20
Note 9: BOE approved supplemental fund for Richmond HS: Fund 40 of $0.6M on 09/09/20
Note 10: 2016 FMP budget for Hercules MS & Hercules HS is combined and reported under Hercules HS
Note 11: Measure 1998E is not covered under Proposition 39 regulations for school bonds, and is not ordinarily reported in the Bond Program
             expenditure reports.  The following report shows Measure 1998E projects by site with state funded DeJean middle school project.

  Measure 1998E Project
 DeJean Middle School 36,836,215.33            36,836,215.33            100.0% -                                 100.0%

1998E Project 23,994,285.33                     23,994,285.33                     100.0% -                                           100.0%
State Fund Project 12,841,930.00                     12,841,930.00                     100.0% -                                           100.0%

 Pinole Valley High School 190,570.61                 190,570.61                 100.0% -                                 100.0%
Central Program Coordination 16,276,517.57            16,276,517.57            100.0% -                                 100.0%

 Total 53,303,303.51            53,303,303.51            100.0% -                                100.0%

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 5 of 5

 
Page 36 of 71



West Contra Costa Unified School District Print Date:2022-11-30

Consolidated Budget Status Report
Budgets versus Commitments and Expenditures for multiple Projects

Budget vs. Commitments and Expenditures
2016 MASTER PLAN PROJECT
Fund 21 and Fund 35

School/Project Name  Initial Budget 
 Approved Budget 

Changes 
 Total Budget 

 Total 
Commitments 

 % Budget 
Commited 

 Remaining 
Against Budget 

 Total 
Expenditures 

 % Budget 
Spent 

1 Cameron
* Critical Needs 1,300,000        -                      1,300,000        121,217           9.3% 1,178,784        80,042            6.2%

 1,300,000       -                     1,300,000       121,217          9.3% 1,178,784       80,042            6.2%
1 Chavez Elementary School

Critical Needs 600,000           (527,153)         72,847            72,847            100.0% -                      72,847            100.0%
 600,000          (527,153)         72,847            72,847            100.0% -                     72,847            100.0%
1 Collins Elementary School

* Critical Needs 3,500,000        -                      3,500,000        283,702           8.1% 3,216,298        175,827           5.0%
 3,500,000       -                     3,500,000       283,702          8.1% 3,216,298       175,827          5.0%
1 Fairmont Elementary School

* Critical Needs 3,000,000        -                      3,000,000        2,738,183        91.3% 261,817           2,738,183        91.3%
 3,000,000       -                     3,000,000       2,738,183       91.3% 261,817          2,738,183       91.3%
1 Grant Elementary School

Critical Needs 900,000           (688,533)         211,467           211,467           100.0% -                      211,467           100.0%
 900,000          (688,533)         211,467          211,467          100.0% -                     211,467          100.0%
1 Harmon Knolls

Critical Needs 200,000           206,946           406,946           406,946           100.0% -                      406,946           100.0%
Soil Testing 100,000           (58,511)           41,489            41,489            100.0% -                      41,489            100.0%

 300,000          148,435          448,435          448,435          100.0% -                     448,435          100.0%
1 Highland Elementary School

* Water & Power Upgrade -                      747,125           747,125           -                      0.0% 747,125           -                      0.0%
Critical Needs 800,000           (747,125)         52,875            52,875            100.0% -                      52,875            100.0%

 800,000          -                     800,000          52,875            6.6% 747,125          52,875            6.6%
1 Lake Elementary School

* Campus Replacement 65,600,000      -                      65,600,000      55,340,704      84.4% 10,259,296      5,084,429        7.8%
Portable Demolition 500,000           (352,499)         147,501           147,501           100.0% -                      147,501           100.0%

 66,100,000     (352,499)         65,747,501     55,488,205     84.4% 10,259,296     5,231,930       8.0%
1 Michelle Obama School

* Campus Replacement 40,300,000      -                      40,300,000      39,344,053      97.6% 955,947           39,344,053      97.6%
 40,300,000     -                     40,300,000     39,344,053     97.6% 955,947          39,344,053     97.6%
1 Ohlone Elementary School

Critical Needs 800,000           (176,115)         623,885           623,885           100.0% -                      623,885           100.0%
 800,000          (176,115)         623,885          623,885          100.0% -                     623,885          100.0%
1 Olinda Elementary School

Critical Needs 1,000,000        (206,753)         793,247           793,247           100.0% -                      793,247           100.0%
 1,000,000       (206,753)         793,247          793,247          100.0% -                     793,247          100.0%
1 Riverside Elementary School

* Critical Needs 6,900,000        -                      6,900,000        3,012,800        43.7% 3,887,200        2,921,783        42.3%
 6,900,000       -                     6,900,000       3,012,800       43.7% 3,887,200       2,921,783       42.3%
1 Shannon Elementary School

* Critical Needs 7,100,000        2,200,000        9,300,000        523,436           5.6% 8,776,564        200,119           2.2%
 7,100,000       2,200,000       9,300,000       523,436          5.6% 8,776,564       200,119          2.2%
1 Stege Elementary School

* Critical Needs 2,900,000        -                      2,900,000        35,900            1.2% 2,864,100        35,900            1.2%
 2,900,000       -                     2,900,000       35,900            1.2% 2,864,100       35,900            1.2%
1 Valley View Elementary School

Critical Needs 1,000,000        91,447            1,091,447        1,091,447        100.0% -                      1,091,447        100.0%
 1,000,000       91,447            1,091,447       1,091,447       100.0% -                     1,091,447       100.0%
2 Betty Reid Soskin Middle School

Critical Needs 3,100,000        2,069,597        5,169,597        5,169,597        100.0% -                      5,169,597        100.0%
 3,100,000       2,069,597       5,169,597       5,169,597       100.0% -                     5,169,597       100.0%
3 Hercules High School

* Critical Needs 14,700,000      5,000,000        19,700,000      1,010,140        5.1% 18,689,860      542,977           2.8%
 14,700,000     5,000,000       19,700,000     1,010,140       5.1% 18,689,860     542,977          2.8%
3 Kennedy High School

* Critical Needs 12,200,000      -                      12,200,000      337,840           2.8% 11,862,160      289,751           2.4%
 12,200,000     -                     12,200,000     337,840          2.8% 11,862,160     289,751          2.4%
3 Richmond High School

* Gym and Seismic Classroom 15,100,000      5,900,000        21,000,000      20,251,050      96.4% 748,950           20,245,988      96.4%
 15,100,000     5,900,000       21,000,000     20,251,050     96.4% 748,950          20,245,988     96.4%

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 

Data as of 10/31/2022

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 1 of 2

 
Page 37 of 71



West Contra Costa Unified School District Print Date:2022-11-30

Consolidated Budget Status Report
Budgets versus Commitments and Expenditures for multiple Projects

Budget vs. Commitments and Expenditures
2016 MASTER PLAN PROJECT
Fund 21 and Fund 35

School/Project Name  Initial Budget 
 Approved Budget 

Changes 
 Total Budget 

 Total 
Commitments 

 % Budget 
Commited 

 Remaining 
Against Budget 

 Total 
Expenditures 

 % Budget 
Spent 

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 

Data as of 10/31/2022

4 Central
 Program Coordination
 (Ed Specs & School Size) 

200,000           -                      200,000           148,128           74.1% 51,872            148,128           74.1%

 200,000          -                     200,000          148,128          74.1% 51,872            148,128          74.1%

Totals 181,800,000   13,458,426     195,258,425   131,758,452   67.5% 63,499,973     80,418,480     41.2%

Note 1: * Site Projects are under planning, construction or in closeout.
Note 2: 1 School Name - Elementary school site name
Note 3: 2 School Name - Middle school site name
Note 4: 3 School Name - High school site name
Note 5: 4 Central/Program Name
Note 6: BOE approved supplemental fund for Michelle Obama school: Fund 25 of $1.75M and Fund 01 MRAD of $0.85M on 6/26/19
Note 7: BOE approved supplemental fund for Richmond HS: Fund 40 of $1M on 11/06/19
Note 8: BOE approved supplemental fund for Michelle Obama school: Fund 25 of $2M on 06/24/20
Note 9: BOE approved supplemental fund for Richmond HS: Fund 40 of $0.6M on 09/09/20
Note 10: 2016 FMP budget for Hercules MS & Hercules HS is combined and reported under Hercules HS

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 2 of 2

 
Page 38 of 71



West Contra Costa Unified School District Print Date: 2022-11-30

Consolidated Budget Status Report
Budgets versus Commitments and Expenditures for multiple Projects

Budget vs. Commitments and Expenditures
2020 MEASURE R PROJECT
Fund 21 and Fund 35

School/Project Name  Initial Budget 
 Approved Budget 

Changes 
 Total Budget 

 Total 
Commitments 

 % Budget 
Commited 

 Remaining 
Against Budget 

 Total 
Expenditures 

 % Budget 
Spent 

3 Kennedy High School
* Fields, Bleachers, Press Box 6,600,000        6,600,000        5,556,753        84.2% 1,043,247        972,757           14.7%

 6,600,000       6,600,000       5,556,753       84.2% 1,043,247       972,757          14.7%
Totals 6,600,000       6,600,000       5,556,753       84.2% 1,043,247       972,757          14.7%

Note 1: * Site Projects are under planning, construction or in closeout.
Note 2: 1 School Name - Elementary school site name
Note 3: 2 School Name - Middle school site name
Note 4: 3 School Name - High school site name
Note 5: 4 Central/Program Name

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 

Data as of 10/31/2022

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 1 of 1

 
Page 39 of 71



Report#13

Notes

214,845,647  1

225,000,000$          2

(510,000)$                2

1,000,000$              225,490,000$   2

440,335,647$                  

1,778,861,243$               3

(1,645,516,841)$              3
133,344,402$                  

306,991,245$                  

9,460,916$              4

Bond Sale 2020 Measure R 275,000,000$         

Interest Earning & Other Revenue

Projected Available Funds

Current budget balance

Less Expenses to Date

Items Pending Board Approval

Projected Cash Balance June 2023

State Facility Grants Pending State Approval

Estimated after current planning period:

*The Projected Cash Balance June 2023 is less $510,000 due to the Cost of Bond Issuance is included both Revenue 
and Board Approved Budget (Central Program Budget).

Budget Balance

Board Approved Budget

     Less: Cost of Issuance

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Bond Program Financial Status

As of October 31 , 2022

Cash Projection to June‐2023

Adjusted Cash Balance

Projected Revenues

     Bond Sales 2020 Measure R

Page 1  of  5 Updated 11/30/2022 
Page 40 of 71



Report#13

Amount Comments

214,857,394$           A

0$   B

824,699$ C
‐$  

‐$   D
(836,446)$                  C

214,845,647$          

FY2022 ‐$  

FY2023 225,000,000$           (510,000)$   1,000,000$                225,490,000$        

Grand Total 225,000,000$           (510,000)$   1,000,000$                225,490,000$        

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bond Program Financial Status

As of October 31 , 2022

Cash & Equivalents Building Fund 21

Cash & Equivalents County School Facilities Fund 35

Note 1:  Adjusted Cash Balance

Description

Accounts Payable

Contract Retention

Adjusted Cash Balance

A. The cash balance is reflective of financial data from MUNIS.

B. California School Facilities Grants are deposited into the County School Facilities Fund 35 and subsequently

transferred to the Building Fund 21.

C. This liability is deducted from the contractor's process payment and retained; it is deposited in a Third party escrow

account or accumulated and held by the district.  The amounts are reflective of financial data from MUNIS.

D. Accounts payable is reflective of financial data from MUNIS.

Less: Cost of Bond 

Issuance

Interest Earnings

& Other

Revenue

Comments

Cash with Fiscal Agent (contract retentions)

Accounts Receivable

TotalFiscal Year
Bond Sales 2020

Measure R

Note 2:  Projected Revenues 

3rd-Party held Retention

District held Retention

Page 2  of  5 Updated 11/30/2022 
Page 41 of 71



Report#13

School Funding OPSC * Status SAB** Approval¹ SAB** Funded Amount

Helms MS Modernization
 Unfunded Approval 

06/06/22 
Est: 07/22‐12/22 Est: Feb‐23 5,225,341$      

B.R.Soskin MS Modernization
 15 Day Letter Sub 

7/13/22,Pend UA 
Est: 01/23‐06/23 Est: Jul‐23 4,235,575$      

Total 9,460,916$      

¹ Last updated 07/28/2022

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bond Program Financial Status

As of October 31 , 2022

Note 4:  State Facility Grants

Upon release of funds by the California State Allocation Board the State Controller prepares the checks which are 

then mailed to the County Treasurer for deposit into the District's bank account Fund 35 (County School Facilities 

Fund) and subsequently are transferred to Fund 21, Building Fund.

*Office of Public School Construction ‐ OPSC

**State Allocation Board ‐ SAB

Description Note

Board Approved BuThis represents the current board approved budget amount and should agree with Report#2, 

Bond Program Spending by Site.

This is total expended amount from FY 1999‐01 thru Current Fiscal Year Perid and should agree 

with Report#2, Bond Program Spending by Site.

Note 3:  Budget Balance

Expenses to Date

Page 3  of  5 Updated 11/30/2022 
Page 42 of 71



Report#13

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bond Program Financial Status

As of October 31 , 2022

Project Type FMP 2016 Current Budget
200,000$ 200,000$              

Critical Needs 1,300,000$                1,300,000$           
Critical Needs 600,000$ 72,847$                
Critical Needs 3,500,000$                3,500,000$           
Critical Needs 3,100,000$                5,169,597$           
Critical Needs 3,000,000$                3,000,000$           
Critical Needs 900,000$ 211,467$              
Critical Needs 200,000$ 406,946$              
Soils Testing 100,000$ 41,489$                
Critical Needs 7,500,000$                10,000,000$         
Critical Needs 7,200,000$                9,700,000$           
Critical Needs 800,000$ 800,000$              
Critical Needs 12,200,000$              12,200,000$         
Critical Needs -$ 147,501$              
RS Replacement 66,100,000$              65,600,000$         
RS Replacement 40,300,000$              40,300,000$         
Critical Needs 800,000$ 623,885$              
Critical Needs 1,000,000$                793,247$              
Critical Needs 15,100,000$              21,000,000$         
Critical Needs 6,900,000$                6,900,000$           
Critical Needs 7,100,000$                9,300,000$           
Critical Needs 2,900,000$                2,900,000$           
Critical Needs 1,000,000$                1,091,447$           

181,800,000$            195,258,425$       

The Board of Education received the Implementation Plan with the draft Master Plan on June 15, 2016 and approved them unanimously. The 
Board approved Implementation Plan - Model one, which includes the following projects with the project cost, including inflation:

Note 5:  2016 Facilities Master Plan Projects

Cameron School

Collin Elementary School

Harmon Knolls

Stege Elementary School

M Obama Elementary School*

School
Ed Specs & School Size

Ohlone Elementary School

Lake Elementary School

Hercules High School***

Kennedy High School

Chavez Elementary School

Harmon Knolls

Fairmont Elementary School

Lake Elementary School

Grant Elementary School

Valley View Elementary School

B.R.Soskin Middle School

Riverside Elementary School
Richmond High School**

Shannon Elementary School

TOTAL IMPLEMENTATION PLAN MODEL 1

Olinda Elementary School

Highland Elementary School

Hercules Middle School***

Page 4  of  5 Updated 11/30/2022 
Page 43 of 71



Report#13

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bond Program Financial Status

As of October 31 , 2022

* BOE approved supplemental fund for Obama ES: Fund 25 of $1.75M and Fund 01 MRAD of $0.85M on 06/26/19
* BOE approved supplemental fund for Obama ES: Fund 25 of $2M on 06/24/20
** BOE approved supplemental fund for Richmond HS: Fund 40 of $1M on 11/06/19
** BOE approved supplemental fund for Richmond HS: Fund 40 of $0.6M on 09/09/20
*** 2016 FMP scope and budget for Hercules MS & Hercules HS is for a singular project so the combind budget will be reported
    under Hercules HS on various financial reports

Definition of ROM1

Project Type Original Budget Current Budget
Field/Blchrs/Press box 6,600,000$                6,600,000$           

Note 6:  Measure R Project

School
Kennedy High School

Five percent inflation has been applied from mid-2016 to the scheduled midpoint of construction, compounded yearly, to account for inflation.  These 
“Rough Order of Magnitude” (R.O.M.) cost estimates, which are based on general cost per square foot, do not include market-based contract 
escalation (if any) above 5% annual inflation.
Additionally, the cost of temporary housing has been included where it was known to be required at the time of the Master Plan (e.g., at Lake 
Elementary).  It has not been included where it was not anticipated prior to the release of the Master Plan (e.g., at M Obama Elementary).
Note that further Architectural and Engineering studies are required, including scoping and budgeting, for all Critical Needs.
*In June 2016 the Board approved $181,800,000 FMP since then the following budget revisions have been approved by the Board:
- Harmon Knolls $250,000 and Valley View $150,000 on 08/09/17; Grant <$688,533>, Harmon Knolls <$101,565>, Lake <$352,499>, Ohlone 
<$176,115>, & Valley View <$58,553> on 07/25/18; Richmond $3,900,000 on 11/14/18; Crespi $2,200,000 on 03/20/19; Chavez <$572,153> on
06/26/19; Richmond $2,000,000 on 11/06/19; Olinda <$206,753.35> on 02//26/20; Crespi <$130,402.83> on 12/16/20; Shannon $2,200,000, Hercules
MS/HS $5,000,000 on 1/26/22

Page 5  of  5 Updated 11/30/2022 
Page 44 of 71



Report#13A

Updated 11/30/2022

Items
Beginning 
Balance

Ending Balance  Variance Notes

Adjusted Cash Balance 217,110,363        214,845,647        (2,264,716)             

Projected Revenue

Bond Sales 2020 Measure R -                       -                       -                         

Less: Cost of Issuance -                       -                       -                         

Interest Earning & Other Revenue -                       -                       -                         

Projected Revenue Total -                       -                       -                         

Projected Available Funds 217,110,363        214,845,647        (2,264,716)             

Budget Balance

Board Approved Budget 1,778,861,243     1,778,861,243     -                         

Less Expenses to Date (1,642,032,981)    (1,645,516,841)    (3,483,860)             <$3,483,860 > Expended in October  2022

Budget Balance Total 136,828,262        133,344,402        (3,483,860)             

Projected Cash Balance June 2023 305,772,102        305,772,102        -                         

State Facility Grants

Estimated during current planning period -                       -                       -                         

Estimated after current planning period 9,460,916            9,460,916            -                         

Items Pending Board Approval -                       -                       -                         

Bond Sale 2020 Measure R after June 2023 275,000,000        275,000,000        -                         

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Financial Impact of Report 13 Analysis

OCTOBER, 2022

1 of 1 
Page 45 of 71



Site Name
 Original
Budget * 

 Board
Approved

Budget
01/26/2022 

 Expended
FY 99-01 thru

FY 21-22 

 Expended  
FY 22-23 
October 

 Expended
Total

thru 10/31/22 

 Committed
Balance

as of 10/31/22 

 Budget
Balance

as of 10/31/22 
 Notes 

BAYVIEW 17,732,392         19,850,802         19,850,802         19,850,802         -                 -                  Footnote 1

CHAVEZ 1,339,784           1,058,234           1,058,234           1,058,234           -                 -                  Footnote 1

COLLINS 993,294              5,138,871           1,803,673           11,025        1,814,698           107,875         3,216,298       Footnote 3

CORONADO 11,278,047         43,022,627         43,022,627         43,022,627         -                 -                  Footnote 1

DOVER 13,070,243         35,095,267         35,095,267         35,095,267         -                 -                  Footnote 1

DOWNER 28,819,079         33,415,902         33,415,902         33,415,902         -                 -                  Footnote 1

ELLERHORST 11,238,341         13,931,806         13,931,806         13,931,806         -                 -                  Footnote 1

FAIRMONT 10,971,356         6,864,259           6,601,941           500             6,602,441           -                 261,817          Footnote 3

FORD 11,839,322         30,817,526         30,817,526         30,817,526         -                 -                  Footnote 1

GRANT 1,409,600           2,155,565           2,155,565           2,155,565           -                 -                  Footnote 1

HANNA RANCH 680,923              783,349              783,349              783,349              -                 -                  Footnote 1

HARDING 15,574,211         22,632,446         22,632,446         22,632,446         -                 -                  Footnote 1

HARMON KNOLLS -                      448,435              448,435              448,435              -                 -                  Footnote 1

HIGHLAND 13,504,714         2,679,839           1,932,714           1,932,714           -                 747,125          Footnote 3

KENSINGTON 16,397,920         19,343,892         19,343,892         19,343,892         -                 -                  Footnote 1

KING 16,688,732         25,342,166         25,342,166         25,342,166         -                 -                  Footnote 1

LAKE 822,657              67,247,823         5,356,612           1,375,640   6,732,252           50,256,274    10,259,296     Footnote 3

LINCOLN 15,225,821         17,676,561         17,676,561         17,676,561         -                 -                  Footnote 1

LUPINE HILLS 16,111,242         15,395,678         15,395,678         15,395,678         -                 -                  Footnote 1

MADERA 11,088,764         12,233,801         12,233,801         12,233,801         -                 -                  Footnote 1

MICHELLE OBAMA** 13,673,885         44,129,324         43,173,377         43,173,377         -                 955,947          Footnote 3

MIRA VISTA 13,928,364         16,651,130         16,651,130         16,651,130         -                 -                  Footnote 1

MONTALVIN 15,904,716         16,791,028         16,791,028         16,791,028         -                 -                  Footnote 1

MURPHY 13,554,495         15,619,655         15,619,655         15,619,655         -                 -                  Footnote 1

NYSTROM 20,999,690         47,800,813         47,800,813         47,800,813         -                 -                  Footnote 1

OHLONE 14,174,928         34,492,752         34,492,752         34,492,752         -                 -                  Footnote 1

OLINDA 1,170,596           2,080,188           2,080,188           2,080,188           -                 -                  Footnote 1

PERES 19,752,789         21,424,293         21,424,293         21,424,293         -                 -                  Footnote 1

RIVERSIDE 13,439,831         21,511,005         17,528,159         4,629          17,532,789         91,017           3,887,200       Footnote 3

SHANNON 1,157,736           10,855,163         1,681,964           73,318        1,755,282           323,317         8,776,564       Footnote 3

SHELDON 14,968,745         15,102,837         15,102,837         15,102,837         -                 -                  Footnote 1

STEGE 13,000,749         6,345,886           3,481,786           3,481,786           -                 2,864,100       Footnote 3

STEWART 12,710,427         16,737,037         16,737,037         16,737,037         -                 -                  Footnote 1

TARA HILLS 14,160,935         14,975,067         14,975,067         14,975,067         -                 -                  Footnote 1

VALLEY VIEW 11,117,405         10,222,362         10,222,362         10,222,362         -                 -                  Footnote 1

VERDE 15,709,690         16,065,870         16,065,870         16,065,870         -                 -                  Footnote 1

WASHINGTON 14,051,720         15,322,847         15,322,847         15,322,847         -                 -                  Footnote 1

Elementary Total 438,263,142       701,262,105       618,050,162       1,465,112   619,515,274       50,778,483    30,968,348     

B R SOSKIN MS*** 1,205,711           6,415,493           6,415,493           6,415,493           -                 -                  Footnote 1

DEJEAN MS 64,929                381,209              381,209              381,209              -                 -                  Footnote 1

HELMS MS 61,287,986         83,432,888         83,432,888         83,432,888         -                 -                  Footnote 1

HERCULES MS 602,982              699,000              699,000              699,000              -                 -                  Footnote 1

KOREMATSU MS 37,937,901         73,382,179         72,734,009         72,734,009         265,130         383,040          Footnote 2

PINOLE MS 38,828,979         56,689,430         56,689,430         56,689,430         -                 -                  Footnote 1

Middle Sch Total 139,928,488       221,000,199       220,352,029       -              220,352,029       265,130         383,040          

Report#2

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Bond Program Spending to Date by Site

Data as of 10/31/2022
Updated 11/30/2022

Page 1 of 2

 
Page 46 of 71



Site Name
 Original
Budget * 

 Board
Approved

Budget
01/26/2022 

 Expended
FY 99-01 thru

FY 21-22 

 Expended  
FY 22-23 
October 

 Expended
Total

thru 10/31/22 

 Committed
Balance

as of 10/31/22 

 Budget
Balance

as of 10/31/22 
 Notes 

Report#2

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Bond Program Spending to Date by Site

Data as of 10/31/2022
Updated 11/30/2022

DE ANZA HS 105,389,888       132,236,248       132,236,248       132,236,248       -                 0                     Footnote 1

EL CERRITO HS 93,605,815         146,850,105       146,850,105       146,850,105       -                 -                  Footnote 1

GREENWOOD 35,315,772         79,583,607         79,583,607         79,583,607         -                 -                  Footnote 1

HERCULES HS 12,603,343         22,995,019         3,707,760           130,237      3,837,997           467,163         18,689,860     Footnote 3

KENNEDY HS 89,903,130         52,654,981         34,334,705         782,785      35,117,490         4,632,084      12,905,407     Footnote 3

PINOLE VALLEY HS 124,040,286       216,549,580       208,128,040       3,039,557   211,167,597       2,917,467      2,464,516       Footnote 2

RICHMOND HS 94,720,910         42,622,087         41,861,632         6,445          41,868,077         5,062             748,949          Footnote 3

VISTA HS 3,566,208           7,236,543           7,236,543           7,236,543           -                 -                  Footnote 1

High Sch Total 559,145,352       700,728,170       653,938,639       3,959,023   657,897,662       8,021,776      34,808,732     

ADAMS MS 703,660              691,211              691,211              691,211              -                 -                  Footnote 1

CAMERON 284,012              1,422,195           202,237              202,237              41,174           1,178,784       Footnote 3

CASTRO 11,901,504         620,944              620,944              620,944              -                 -                  Footnote 1

DELTA NSS 152,564              152,226              152,226              152,226              -                 -                  Footnote 1

EL SOBRANTE 187,343              536,231              536,231              536,231              -                 -                  Footnote 1

HARBOUR WAY 121,639              121,944              121,944              121,944              -                 -                  Footnote 1

KAPPA NSS 109,809              109,831              109,831              109,831              -                 -                  Footnote 1

NORTH CAMPUS 169,849              205,450              205,450              205,450              -                 -                  Footnote 1

OMEGA NSS 117,742              118,313              118,313              118,313              -                 -                  Footnote 1

SEAVIEW 178,534              499,116              499,116              499,116              -                 -                  Footnote 1

SIGMA NSS 110,728              110,949              110,949              110,949              -                 -                  Footnote 1

TLC 118,020              116,673              116,673              116,673              -                 -                  Footnote 1

WEST HERCULES -                      56,847                56,847                56,847                -                 -                  Footnote 1

Closed/Program Total 14,155,404         4,761,930           3,541,972           -              3,541,972           41,174           1,178,784       

CENTRAL 67,713,312         111,331,634       104,361,793       568,411      104,930,204       2,102,866      4,298,564       Budget thru 22-23

RCP CHARTER 8,148,550           4,415,204           4,415,204           4,415,204           -                 -                  Footnote 1

TECHNOLOGY 35,000,000         35,362,000         34,776,162         88,333        34,864,495         388,103         109,402          Footnote 2

Admin/Other Total 110,861,862       151,108,838       143,553,159       656,744      144,209,903       2,490,969      4,407,967       
GRAND TOTAL 1,262,354,248    1,778,861,243    1,639,435,962    6,080,879   1,645,516,841    61,597,532    71,746,870     

* Original Budget provided is based on Report#2 dated April 30, 2018, and has not been reconciled.

** Board approved renaming of Wilson Elementary school to Michelle Obama School on 02/12/20.

*** Board approved renaming of Crespi Middle school to Betty Reid Soskin on 06/23/21.
Footnote 1: Site projects are completed. 152,964.00     
Footnote 2: Site Legacy projects are under planning, construction or in closeout.
Footnote 3: Site Legacy projects are completed and 2016 Facilities Master Plan/2020 Msr R Projects are under planning, construction or in clos 76,482.00       
Note:. Measure 1998E is not covered under Proposition 39 regulations for school bonds, and is not ordinarily reported in the Bond Program expenditure reports.
          The following report shows Measure 1998E projects by site with state funded DeJean middle school project.
Measure 1998E Project Budget Expended

DeJean Middle School 36,836,215             36,836,215             -                     
1998E Project 23,994,285               23,994,285               -                      
State Fund Project 12,841,930               12,841,930               -                      

Pinole Valley High School 190,571                  190,571                  -                     
Central Program Coordination 16,276,518             16,276,518             -                     

Total 53,303,304             53,303,304             -                     

Page 2 of 2

 
Page 47 of 71



Vendor Name

Check 

No.

Check 

Date

Short

Account

Invoice

Number

Invoice

Date Amount Invoice Description

681,517.25

ALTEN CONSTRUCTION INC 217334 10/18/22 21‐9748‐9135‐000 1000003734‐10‐12ATRU 10/11/22 77,880.07 1000003734 JUNE 2022‐AUGUST 2022 RETAINAGE

BHM CONSTRUCTION, INC 217562 10/25/22 21‐9747‐9135‐000 1000003935‐1TRUST 10/07/22 35,011.37 1000003935 SEPTEMBER ESCROW RETENTION

CWS CONSTRUCTION GROUP 217373 10/18/22 21‐9748‐9135‐000 1000003314‐3‐11TRUST 10/11/22 568,625.81 1000003314 OCT 2021‐SEPT 2022 RETAINAGE

11,025.00

WOLF/LANG/CHRISTOPHER ARCHITEC 217322 10/11/22 21‐9745‐6201‐110 21008010 08/01/22 11,025.00 COLLINS ES ARCHITECT SERVICES JULY 2022

656,670.14

ALAN KROPP AND ASSOCIATES INC 217549 10/25/22 21‐9745‐6190‐134 28234 10/04/22 12,203.40 LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACEMENT 07/05/22‐08/22/22

ALAN KROPP AND ASSOCIATES INC 217549 10/25/22 21‐9745‐6190‐134 28280 10/04/22 5,661.27 LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACEMENT 08/23/22‐09/22/22

ALTEN CONSTRUCTION INC 216961 10/04/22 21‐9745‐6201‐134 1000003734‐12B 08/31/22 63,155.00 LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACE DESIGN AUGUST 2022

ALTEN CONSTRUCTION INC 216961 10/04/22 21‐9748‐6211‐134 1000003734‐12A 08/31/22 549,345.47 LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACEMENT PROJECT AUGUST 

CROWN WORLDWIDE MOVING AND STO 217582 10/25/22 21‐9748‐4300‐134 144895 05/19/22 1,355.00 LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACEMENT CROWN MOVING       

DSA SCHOOL INSPECTORS, INC. 217162 10/11/22 21‐9745‐6214‐134 22‐1986 08/01/22 8,230.00 LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACEMENT DSA IOR JULY 2022

DSA SCHOOL INSPECTORS, INC. 217162 10/11/22 21‐9745‐6214‐134 22‐1994 08/31/22 8,740.00 LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACEMENT DSA IOR AUGUST 

DSA SCHOOL INSPECTORS, INC. 217591 10/25/22 21‐9745‐6214‐134 22‐2011 09/30/22 7,980.00 LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACEMENT DSA IOR 

67,620.00

CALIFORNIA GEOLOGICAL SURVEY 217124 10/11/22 21‐9745‐6190‐154 61796‐369 09/29/22 4,800.00 SHANNON ES MPR CA GEO SURVEY REVIEW FEE           

DIVISION OF STATE ARCHITECT 217159 10/11/22 21‐9745‐6205‐154 61796‐369 09/27/22 62,820.00 SHANNON ES DSA FEES  DSA PLAN/FIELD REVIEW        

746,273.32

BHM CONSTRUCTION, INC 217354 10/18/22 21‐9747‐6170‐360 1000003935‐1 10/07/22 665,216.12 KENNEDY HS BLEACHER & PRESS BOX SEPTEMBER 

DSA SCHOOL INSPECTORS, INC. 216991 10/04/22 21‐9747‐6190‐360 22‐2000 08/31/22 11,155.00 KENNEDY HS BLEACHERS & PRESS BOX AUGUST 2022

DSA SCHOOL INSPECTORS, INC. 217591 10/25/22 21‐9747‐6190‐360 22‐2010 09/30/22 10,185.00 KENNEDY HS BLEACHERS & PRESS BOX SEPTEMBER 

HMC ARCHITECTS 217196 10/11/22 21‐9745‐6201‐360 164266 09/19/22 41,291.00  KENNEDY HS MASTER PLANNING SERVICES AUGUST 

HMC ARCHITECTS 217425 10/18/22 21‐9747‐6201‐360 164265 09/19/22 18,426.20 KENNEDY HS BLEACHERS AND PRESSBOX AUGUST 
1,500,657.88

CWS CONSTRUCTION GROUP 216984 10/04/22 21‐9748‐6170‐362 1000003314‐11 09/12/22 1,486,203.67 PVHS FIELDS,FIELD HOUSE & BLEACHER FOR AUGUST 

ROBERT TODD STANTON 217292 10/11/22 21‐9745‐6190‐362 1159 08/03/22 5,600.00 PVHS FIELDS & BLEACHERS DSA IOR JULY 2022

ROBERT TODD STANTON 217518 10/18/22 21‐9745‐6190‐362 1166 10/07/22 5,400.00 PVHS FIELDS & BLEACHERS DSA INSPET SVCSC SEPT 

SIGNET TESTING LABORATORIES IN 217509 10/18/22 21‐9748‐5890‐362 12748 09/16/22 3,454.21 PVHS FIELD & BLEACHERS TESTING

6,842.78

HKIT ARCHITECTS 217424 10/18/22 21‐9745‐6201‐364 8 09/30/22 6,842.78 RICHMOND HS ‐ MASTER PLANNING SVCS 

Site 362 ‐ PINOLE VALLEY HIGH

Site 364 ‐ RICHMOND HIGH

A/P Check List
October, 2022

Fund 21

Site 000 ‐ UNDISTRIBUTED

Site 110 ‐ COLLINS

Site 134 ‐ LAKE

Site 154 ‐ SHANNON

Site 360 ‐ KENNEDY HIGH

 12/9/2022 1:49:15 PM Page 1 of 3 AP Check List-OCTOBER,  dc

 
Page 48 of 71



A/P Check List
October, 2022

Fund 21

130,236.53

ATLAS TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS LL 217559 10/25/22 21‐9745‐6190‐376 011271 09/29/22 750.00 HECULES MS/HS NEW SCIENCE BLDG CNP THROUGH 

DSK LLP 217384 10/18/22 21‐9745‐6201‐376 006‐2629‐REVISED 10/11/22 108,577.53 HERCULES M/H SCHOOL CNP ARCH SVCS MARCH 

DSK LLP 217384 10/18/22 21‐9745‐6201‐376 008‐2811 10/11/22 20,909.00 HERCULES M/H SCHOOL CNP ARCH SVCS JULY 2022

103,905.79

AA OFFICE EQUIPMENT CO INC 217096 10/11/22 21‐9748‐5640‐615 AR77887 09/30/22 62.35 FOC COLOR COPIER‐SVC MAINT. AGMT 8/25/22‐

DEL MOR CONSULTING INC 217377 10/18/22 21‐9745‐6214‐615 220020 09/28/22 360.00 COLLINS ES DSA LEGACY CLOSEOUT SEPTEMBER 2022

KBA DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC 217012 10/04/22 21‐9748‐4300‐615 55Y1306997 09/16/22 70.69 BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER FOR 9/1/22‐9/12/22

KBA DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC 217012 10/04/22 21‐9748‐4300‐615 55Y1307538 09/19/22 70.69 BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER FOR 9/19/22

KBA DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC 217210 10/11/22 21‐9748‐4300‐615 55Y1309075 09/23/22 16.95 BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER  9/20/22 TONER

KBA DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC 217625 10/25/22 21‐9748‐4300‐615 55Y1315086 10/14/22 47.13 BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER FOR 10/14/22

ORBACH HUFF & HENDERSON LLP 217036 10/04/22 21‐9790‐5895‐615 97921 08/08/22 582.59 BOND LEGAL FUND 21 JULY 2022

ORBACH HUFF & HENDERSON LLP 217036 10/04/22 21‐9790‐5895‐615 97923 08/08/22 737.14 LAKE ES MODERNIZATION JULY 2022

ORBACH HUFF & HENDERSON LLP 217036 10/04/22 21‐9790‐5895‐615 98233 09/12/22 467.25 BOND LEGAL FUND 21 AUGUST 2022

ORBACH HUFF & HENDERSON LLP 217036 10/04/22 21‐9790‐5895‐615 98236 09/12/22 1,652.00 LAKE ES MODERNIZATION AUGUST 2022

RGM KRAMER INC 217271 10/11/22 21‐9745‐6202‐615 8296 08/30/22 4,477.50 FOC PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTION MGMT SVCS JULY 

RGM KRAMER INC 217271 10/11/22 21‐9745‐6217‐615 8296 08/30/22 72,799.50 FOC PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTION MGMT SVCS JULY 

RGM KRAMER INC 217271 10/11/22 21‐9748‐6203‐615 8296 08/30/22 11,417.50 FOC PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTION MGMT SVCS JULY 

ROEBBELEN CONSTRUCTION MANAGEM 217492 10/18/22 21‐9745‐6217‐615 342265‐01 06/09/22 1,120.00 VARIOUS SITES PROJECT COORDINATION MAY 2022

TIMOTHY R. HALEY 216999 10/04/22 21‐9748‐6203‐615 20 09/08/22 9,900.00 FOC DESIGN MANAGEMENT AUGUST 2022

WEI JUN WANG 217086 10/04/22 21‐9745‐6202‐615 0025 09/06/22 124.50 DISTRICT WIDE FACILITIES MGMT AUGUST 2022

62,084.96

DECOTECH SYSTEMS 217153 10/11/22 21‐9745‐6460‐686 1000003604‐6 09/07/22 62,084.96 VARIOUS SITES ‐ E‐RATE YEAR 24 THROUGH AUGUST 

3,966,834

AP CHECK TOTAL 3,966,833.65 

Less: Final Retention Paid (681,517.25)    

Add: Retention not in Expenses 145,413.17     

Add: October regular payroll 94,342.12        

Less: Manual Entry (41,211.60)      

Total 3,483,860.09 

Site 376 ‐ HERCULES SR HIGH

Site 615 ‐ OPERATIONAL SUPPT SRVS CE

Site 686 ‐ TECHNOLOGY ‐ OPERATIONAL

Grand Total

 12/9/2022 1:49:15 PM Page 2 of 3 AP Check List-OCTOBER,  dc

 
Page 49 of 71



A/P Check List
October, 2022

Fund 21

Object 9570‐ Retention withheld Paid

Vendor Name

Check 

No.

Check 

Date

Short

Account

Invoice

Number

Invoice

Date
Retention

Invoice Description
ALTEN CONSTRUCTION INC 217334 10/18/22 21‐9748‐9135‐000 1000003734‐10‐12ATRU 10/11/22 77,880.07 1000003734 JUNE 2022‐AUGUST 2022 RETAINAGE

BHM CONSTRUCTION, INC 217562 10/25/22 21‐9747‐9135‐000 1000003935‐1TRUST 10/07/22 35,011.37 1000003935 SEPTEMBER ESCROW RETENTION

CWS CONSTRUCTION GROUP 217373 10/18/22 21‐9748‐9135‐000 1000003314‐3‐11TRUST 10/11/22 568,625.81 1000003314 OCT 2021‐SEPT 2022 RETAINAGE

Grand Total 681,517.25

Object 9570‐Retention Withheld Amount

Vendor Name

Check 

No.

Check 

Date

Short

Account

Invoice

Number

Invoice

Date
Retention

Invoice Description
ALTEN CONSTRUCTION INC 216961 10/04/22 21‐9748‐6211‐134 1000003734‐12A 08/31/22 28,912.92 LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACEMENT PROJECT AUGUST 

2022
BHM CONSTRUCTION, INC 217354 10/18/22 21‐9747‐6170‐360 1000003935‐1 10/07/22 35,011.37 KENNEDY HS BLEACHER & PRESS BOX SEPTEMBER 

2022
CWS CONSTRUCTION GROUP 216984 10/04/22 21‐9748‐6170‐362 1000003314‐11 09/12/22 78,221.25 PVHS FIELDS,FIELD HOUSE & BLEACHER FOR AUGUST 

2022
DECOTECH SYSTEMS 217153 10/11/22 21‐9745‐6460‐686 1000003604‐6 09/07/22 3,267.63 VARIOUS SITES ‐ E‐RATE YEAR 24 THROUGH AUGUST 

2022

Grand Total 145,413.17

Payroll

Project#
Check 

No.

Check 

Date

Short

Account

Invoice

Number

Invoice

Date
Amount

Invoice Description
66901396‐01 10/31/22 75,056.66 Facility Program Staff October 2022 Pay

67001396‐01 10/31/22 19,285.46 Assoc. Supt. Operation Staff October Pay

Grand Total 94,342.12

Manual Journal Entry

Project#
Check 

No.

Check 

Date

Short

Account

Invoice

Number

Invoice

Date
Amount

Invoice Description
32,430.34 See Page 4 for details

8,781.26 See page 4 for details

Grand Total 41,211.60

Prior Month's (2022) Facility Staff Salary Adjustment thru Timesheet 

Prior Month's (2022) Assoc Supt. Staff Salary Adjustment thru Timesheet 

 12/9/2022 1:49:15 PM Page 3 of 3 AP Check List-OCTOBER,  dc

 
Page 50 of 71



Facility Program Staff Regular Payroll
 Prior 

Month's 
Adjustment 

Adjusted Amount

DIRECTOR FAC/PLANNING 13,188.13$               -$              13,188.13$  
BOND REGIONAL FACILT 15,374.25$               (14,759.28)$  614.97$  
BOND REGIONAL FACILT 2,426.00$                 (2,426.00)$    -$  
DIRECTOR OF CONTRACT 15,313.42$               -$              15,313.42$  
ADMIN SVCS MANAGER  6,279.87$                 (3,391.12)$    2,888.75$  
ADMIN SVCS MANAGER  6,348.22$                 (6,094.28)$    253.94$  
ADMINISTRATIVE TECH 3,045.96$                 -$              3,045.96$  
FISCAL/PROJECT ACCOUNT ANALYST 5,462.44$                 (2,621.98)$    2,840.46$  
ACCOUNTING TECH 5,582.55$                 (3,870.58)$    1,711.97$  
ACCOUNING TECH 2,035.82$                 732.90$        2,768.72$  

Facility Program Staff Total 75,056.66$               (32,430.34)$  42,626.32$  

Assoc Supt Operations Staff
ASSO SUPT-FAC MAI BO 16,442.07$               (8,781.26)$    7,660.81$  
SR ADMIN SECRETARY  2,843.39$                 -$              2,843.39$  

Assoc Supt Operations Staff Total 19,285.46$               (8,781.26)$    10,504.20$  
Total Payroll 94,342.12$               (41,211.60)$  53,130.52$  

OCTOBER 2022 Payroll Data (Salary + Benefits)

 12/1/2022 6:31:13 PM Page 4 AP Check List-OCTOBER,  dc 
Page 51 of 71



 
Page 52 of 71



 
Page 53 of 71



 
Page 54 of 71



 
Page 55 of 71



 
Page 56 of 71



 
Page 57 of 71



 
Page 58 of 71



 
Page 59 of 71



 
Page 60 of 71



 
Page 61 of 71



 
Page 62 of 71



 
Page 63 of 71



 
Page 64 of 71



 
Page 65 of 71



WCCUSD CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
(Bond Measures D, E and R) 
November 14, 2022 at 6 pm 

1400 Marina Way South, Richmond CA 94804 
Meeting Minutes - draft 

In Person Meeting 
Meeting video recording available on YouTube 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9u1R1iSWbHzhieeGC5LvYA/videos 

A. Opening Procedures
B. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance

Mr. Anderson called the meeting to order
C. Welcome Gaia Sonatina to CBOC
D. Roll Call

John Anderson, Sallie DeWitt, Gaia Sonatina, Lorraine Humes, and Jason Lindsey
Members Present: John Anderson, Lorraine Humes, Gaia Sonatina
Members Absent: Sallie DeWitt, Jason Lindsey
Staff Present: Luis Freese, Melissa Payne, Ellen Mejia-Hooper

Agenda
In keeping with CBOC Resolution No. 22-04 all items on the agenda are presentations by
WCCUSD staff and for other information for general discussion.  No action will be taken
by the CBOC during this meeting.

a. Reference CBOC Resolution No. 22-04 (attached)

E. Public Comment for items not on the Agenda

Items already on the agenda may not be spoken on in this section.  Speakers wishing to
address a specific agenda item they must fill out a Speaker Form with the appropriate
agenda item listed.  Speakers will be allowed three minutes

Public Comments
Mr. Jungherr

PRESENTATION

F. Bond Program Project Status and Financial Reports (Luis Freese/Melissa
Payne/Ellen Mejia-Hooper)

Presentation on progress of current Bond Projects including newsletters and financial
reports.
Mrs. Mejia-Hooper presented the projects updates.

Page 66 of 71

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9u1R1iSWbHzhieeGC5LvYA/videos


a. Facilities Master Plan Project Update Consolidated Budget Report  

Public Comments 
       Mr. Gosney 
 

Discussion 
Mr. Anderson  and Ms. Humes had some questions and comments. Mr. Freese and 
Ms. Mejia- Hooper addressed their questions. 
Mr. Anderson asked about the increases in project budget and where the money is 
coming from. Mrs. Mejia-Hooper and Mr. Freese responded that matching funds have 
been received from the state funds to cover the increases. 
Ms. Humes asked if the committee could get a report showing where the increases are 
coming from. Mr. Freese explained that change orders are within the project budget. 
Ms. Humes also asked about the completion dates of Pinole Valley HS and Kennedy 
HS. 
 
Public Comments 
Mr. Gosney 
 
Mrs. Payne welcomed Mrs. Sonatina and proceeded with presenting the financial 
reports. 
 
b. Consolidated Budget Report  
c. Report 13 Bond Program Financial Status  
d. Report 13A Variance Report 
e. Report 2 Bond Program Spending to Date  
f. 20-21 AP check list  

Ms. Humes asked about payroll for S. Cha now that she transferred to Business 
Services. Mrs. Payne answered that payroll has transferred Mrs. Cha’s salary 
accordingly. 

g. Status of applicants for CBOC 
h. Status of WCCUSD Board acceptance of Bond Financial and Bond Audit 

Performance Audits for FY21 

Mr. Anderson asked the status of the Bond Audit Performance Reports. Mrs. Payne 
answered that by stature the Board needs to receive the reports. The audit reports 
were presented to the Board at the November 2, 2022 Board of Ed meeting at which 
time the Board received the reports. 

 

i. Status of WCCUSD Board approval of revised Board Policy 7214.2 
(WCCUSD CBOC)  

 
Page 67 of 71



Mr. Anderson noticed the revised Board Policy 7214.2 was not on the agenda for the next 
Board meeting. 
Mr. Freese replied that he had been working with the Superintendent and the 
Superintendent was working with the Board. They are proposing to bring it back at the 
CBOC Joint meeting with the Board. 

 
 

 
                                DISCUSSION 
 

G. 2021 CBOC Annual Report (Lorraine Humes) 
a. Update annual due dates for the Annual Reports that were established in 

Resolution 21-3 
b. 2021 Transitional Annual Report Input (see attached material from 

September 12 2022 agenda) 

Ms. Humes shared the Annual Report Input spreadsheet by starting with reviewing 
how the CBOC reports used the calendar year basis versus the District using the 
Fiscal year basis. Her research of other state CBOCs found that the majority of 
CBOCs used the Fiscal year for the Annual Reports. This CBOC will now be 
transitioning to a Fiscal calendar. Ms. Humes reviewed the  transitioning spreadsheet. 
She reviewed the delays on the Board receiving the audits due to full Board meeting 
agendas. The Board received the audits at the 11-2-22 Board meeting. She asked Mr. 
Freese if he could get something in writing from the Board stating the audits were 
received and accepted. She reviewed the reports that they already had for the 2022 
annual report. Mr. Anderson offered some comments and clarifications. 

 

H. Reference Documents 
a. Revised August 15, 2022 CBOC Meeting Draft Minutes 
b. CBOC Information Request Log November 14, 2022 
c. WCCUSD Board November 2 2022 Agenda Item E.3 Approve Proposed 

Revisions to Board Policy 7214.2 CBOC 
i. Proposed CBOC Presentation 

ii. WCCUSD Draft BP 7214.2 
iii. Staff Response to Comments CBOC Policy 
iv. CBOC Policy Existing v Proposed 

 
I. Activities for December 2022 CBOC Meeting 

a. Election of Officers for 2023 
b. Planning for Activities  

i. New By Laws (pending approval of revision of BP 7214.2 
ii. Annual Reports 

 
Page 68 of 71



 
J. Next Scheduled Meeting  

a. December 12,  6 pm 
 

K. Adjournment   
 
Mr. Anderson adjourned the meeting. 
 

Disability Information 

Upon written request to the district, disability related modifications or accommodations—
including auxiliary aids or services—will be provided. Contact the Superintendent’s Office at 

(510) 231-1101 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting 

 
Page 69 of 71



Page 70 of 71



 
Page 71 of 71


	7. AP Check List-OCTOBER UPDATED.pdf
	AP Check List-OCTOBER REVISED.pdf
	AP Check List-OCTOBER REV.pdf

	Projects Status Update_Dec 2022_Final.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Project Status Update
	Kennedy High School Field, Bleacher & Press Box
	Kennedy High School Field, Bleacher & Press Box
	Kennedy HS Bleachers and Press Box Replacement
	Kennedy HS Bleachers and Press Box Replacement
	Kennedy HS Bleachers and Press Box Replacement
	Cameron and Collins Critical Needs Project
	Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement
	Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement
	Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement
	Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement Design Build Contract AmendmentCBOC December 12, 2022 
	Lake ES Campus Replacement
	              ENGINEERING NEWS RECORD                                    Historical Cost Index for San Francisco
	    Material      Escalation 
	              Cost Mitigation  - $3,559,244
	On December 7th the Board Approved the following:

	Newsletter-KHS Bleachers_12.2022.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Newsletter-Lake ES_December 12.2022.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Project Status Report - KHS Fields_Dec 2022.pdf
	Monthly Report

	Project Status Report - Lake ES Campus Replacement_Dec 2022.pdf
	Sheet1




